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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

WESTERN DIVISION 
 
_____________________________________                                                                         
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA     ) 
        ) 

and       ) 
        ) 
THE STATE OF OHIO,     ) 
                              ) 
  Plaintiffs,     ) 
        ) 
  v.         ) 
          ) 
BP PRODUCTS NORTH AMERICA    ) 
INC. and BP-HUSKY REFINING LLC,        ) 
        ) 
       Defendants.     ) 
_____________________________________) 
  
    

 
 
 
 
 
CIVIL ACTION NO. 
 
 
 
  
 
  

COMPLAINT 
  

The United States of America (“United States”), by the authority of the Attorney General 

of the United States and through the undersigned attorneys, acting at the request of the 

Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), and the State of 

Ohio (“Ohio”), on behalf of the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency (“Ohio EPA”), file this 

Complaint and allege as follows: 

NATURE OF ACTION 

1. This civil action seeks injunctive relief and civil penalties from BP Products 

North America Inc. (“BP Products”) and BP-Husky Refining LLC (“BP-Husky”) (collectively, 

the “Defendants”).  This action stems from the Defendants’ alleged violations of the “Clean Air 

Act,” 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq., the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and 
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Liability Act (“CERCLA”), 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq., and the Emergency Planning and 

Community Right-to-Know Act (“EPCRA”), 42 U.S.C. § 11001 et seq., at the Defendants’ 

petroleum refinery located at 4001 Cedar Point Road, in Oregon, Lucas County, Ohio (the 

“Toledo Refinery”).  The United States brings this case pursuant to Clean Air Act Sections 

113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), CERCLA Section 109(c), 42 U.S.C. § 9609(c), and EPCRA 

Section 325(b)(3), 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(3).   

2. As alleged in the Complaint, the Defendants failed to properly operate and 

maintain continuous emissions monitoring systems (“CEMS”) at the Toledo Refinery.  Valves, 

piping, and other manufacturing equipment were not properly identified, monitored, or equipped 

in order to detect and repair leaks that emit volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) and hazardous 

air pollutants (“HAPs”) into the air.  Refinery wastewater system components were not properly 

identified, inspected, and/or controlled.  The Defendants also failed to immediately report 

releases of hazardous substances and extremely hazardous substances to the appropriate state and 

local agencies. 

3. Ohio seeks the assessment of civil penalties and injunctive relief based on similar 

violations at the Toledo Refinery of the Ohio State Implementation Plan (“SIP”) and other state 

rules and regulations that incorporate and implement the Clean Air Act’s requirements. 

4. The United States alleges that the Defendants violated or will continue to violate 

the following Clean Air Act requirements that apply to the Toledo Refinery:  

a. The New Source Performance Standards (“NSPS”) promulgated at  
 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subparts A and J, pursuant to Clean Air Act 
 Section 111, 42 U.S.C. § 7411 that relate to the operation and 
 maintenance of CEMS; 

 
b. The NSPS, promulgated at 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart QQQ, 
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 pursuant to Clean Air Act Section 111, 42 U.S.C. § 7411, relating 
 to controlling VOC emissions from petroleum refinery wastewater 
 systems; 

 
c. Leak Detection and Repair (“LDAR”) requirements for petroleum  

 refineries promulgated at 40 C.F.R. Part 60 Subparts VV and 
 GGG, pursuant to Clean Air Act Section 111, 42 U.S.C. § 7411; 
 

d. The federally enforceable provisions of Ohio’s SIP that 
 incorporate, adopt, and/or implement the federal requirements 
 listed in 4.a;  

 
e. The Toledo Refinery’s “Title V” permit; and  

 
f. Requirements of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and EPCRA, 42 

 U.S.C. § 11004(a) specifying that releases of hazardous 
 substances and extremely hazardous substances be immediately 
 reported. 

 
5. VOCs and HAPs were illegally emitted into Ohio’s air because of the Defendants’ 

alleged Clean Air Act and Ohio SIP violations. 

JURISDICTION, VENUE, AND AUTHORITY 
 

6. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to:  

a) 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1345, and 1355; b) Section 113(b) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.  

§ 7413(b); c) Section 109(c) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609(c); and d) Section 325(b)(3) of 

EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(3).  This Court also has personal jurisdiction over the Defendants 

because BP Products and BP-Husky conduct business in this judicial district. 

7. This Court has supplemental jurisdiction over the state law claims asserted by 

Ohio pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.  Ohio’s claims are part of the same case or controversy 

formed by the United States’ claims in this action.  Ohio’s claims involve the Toledo Refinery, 

stem from the same facts as the United States’ claims, and seek similar relief. 

Case: 3:20-cv-00190-JGC  Doc #: 1  Filed:  01/29/20  3 of 34.  PageID #: 3



 

4 
 

8. Venue lies in this judicial district pursuant to Section 113(b) of the Clean Air Act, 

42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), Section 109(c) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609(c), and Section 325(b)(3) of 

EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(3), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c) and 1395(a), because the 

violations alleged in the Complaint are alleged to have occurred in this judicial district.  BP 

Products and BP-Husky also conduct business in this judicial district.  

9. The United States Department of Justice has authority to bring this action on 

behalf of the EPA under 28 U.S.C. §§ 516 and 519 and Clean Air Act Section 305(a), 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7605(a).  

NOTICE 

10. Notice of the Ohio SIP violations alleged in this Complaint was given to the 

Defendants and Ohio as required by Section 113(a)(1) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C.  

§ 7413(a)(1).  Ohio was given notice of the commencement of this action as required by Clean 

Air Act Section 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b). 

PARTIES 

11. The Plaintiffs in this case are the United States, acting at the request of the EPA, 

and Ohio, acting at the request of the Ohio EPA. 

12. At all times relevant to the Complaint, Defendant BP Products has been a 

corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Maryland and doing business at the 

Toledo Refinery.  

13. At all times relevant to the Complaint, BP Products has been, and continues to be, 

the “operator” of the Toledo Refinery (and its constituent process units) within the meaning of 

Sections 111(a) and 112(a) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a) and 7412(a), and EPCRA 
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Section 304, 42 U.S.C. § 11004.  Until approximately August 2008, when it sold ownership of 

the refinery to BP-Husky, BP Products was also the “owner” of the Toledo Refinery (and its 

constituent process units), within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a) and 7412(a), and EPCRA 

Section 304, 42 U.S.C. § 11004. 

14. At all times relevant to the Complaint, BP Products has been, and continues to be, 

a “person in charge” of the Toledo Refinery, within the meaning of CERCLA Section 103(a), 42 

U.S.C. § 9603(a). 

15. At all times relevant to the Complaint since approximately August 2008, 

Defendant BP-Husky has been a limited liability company existing under the laws of the State of 

Delaware and doing business at the Toledo Refinery.  Defendant BP-Husky, a joint venture 

between BP Products and Husky Refining L.L.C., has been the “owner,” of the Toledo Refinery 

(and its constituent process units), within the meaning of Sections 111(a) and 112(a) of the Clean 

Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7411(a) and 7412(a), and EPCRA Section 304, 42 U.S.C. § 11004, at all 

times relevant to the Complaint since approximately August 2008. 

16. At all times relevant to the Complaint since approximately August 2008, BP-

Husky has been, and continues to be, a “person in charge” of the Toledo Refinery, within the 

meaning of CERCLA Section 103(a), 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a). 

17. Each Defendant is a “person” within the meaning of:  

a. Clean Air Act Section 302(e), 42 U.S.C. § 7602(e), and the federal and state 
Clean Air Act regulations cited in the Complaint; 
 

b. CERCLA Section 101(21), 42 U.S.C. § 9601(21), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.3; and 

c. EPCRA Section 329(7), 42 U.S.C. § 11049(7), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.61.  
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THE TOLEDO REFINERY 

18. The Toledo Refinery processes up to 160,000 barrels of crude oil each day into 

marketable petroleum products.  These processing operations take place at different “process 

units” throughout the refinery.  Process units, like “fluid catalytic cracking units,” are arrays of 

related components and equipment that use different physical, thermal, and chemical processes 

to produce intermediate or final products from petroleum, unfinished petroleum derivatives, or 

other intermediates. 

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND 

A. Clean Air Act Requirements 

19. The Clean Air Act’s purpose is to protect and enhance the nation’s air quality in 

order to promote the public’s health, welfare, and productive capacity.  See 42 U.S.C.  

§ 7401(b)(1). 

20. The Clean Air Act regulates “stationary sources” of air pollutants.  Stationary 

sources are typically fixed industrial or manufacturing facilities, like petroleum refineries.  See 

42 U.S.C. § 7411(a)(3).  Stationary sources contrast with mobile sources of air pollution, like 

vehicles, which the Clean Air Act also regulates. 

21. The Toledo Refinery is a stationary source within the meaning of 42 U.S.C.  

§§ 7411(a)(3) and 7602(j).  The Toledo Refinery consists of process units and other types of 

buildings, structures, facilities, and installations, like tanks and wastewater treatment system 

components, which emit air pollutants. 
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i. 40 C.F.R. Part 60 – New Source Performance Standards 

   1. Background 

22. Clean Air Act Section 111(b)(1)(A), 42 U.S.C. § 7411(b)(1)(A), requires the EPA 

to publish and periodically revise a list of categories of stationary sources that, in the EPA’s 

judgment, cause or contribute significantly to air pollution which may reasonably be anticipated 

to endanger public health or welfare.  These categories generally correspond to distinct 

manufacturing processes or equipment within a given industry.   

23. Once a category is included on the list, Clean Air Act Section 111(b)(1)(B), 

42 U.S.C. §7411(b)(1)(B), requires the EPA to promulgate a “New Source Performance 

Standard” (NSPS) to regulate emissions from new sources within that category.  The NSPS are 

published at 40 C.F.R. Part 60.  For example, 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart GGG covers VOC leaks 

from certain equipment at petroleum refineries, while 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart QQQ covers 

VOC emissions from certain wastewater systems at petroleum refineries. 

24. A “new source” is defined as any stationary source for which construction or 

modification is commenced after an applicable NSPS is published or proposed.  See 42 U.S.C.  

§ 7411(a)(2). 

25. NSPS apply to both the owner and operator of any stationary source that contains 

an affected facility that is constructed or modified after an applicable NSPS is published.  See 40 

C.F.R. § 60.1.  An “affected facility” is defined as “any apparatus to which a [NSPS] standard is 

applicable.”  40 C.F.R. § 60.2.   
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26. Clean Air Act Section 111(e), 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e), prohibits the owner or 

operator of a new source from operating that source in violation of an NSPS after the effective 

date of the NSPS applicable to such source. 

2.  Part 60, Subpart A: NSPS General Standards and  
CEMS Requirements 

 
27. Pursuant to Clean Air Act Section 111(b)(1)(B), 42 U.S.C. § 7411(b)(1)(B), the 

EPA promulgated general regulations that apply to all stationary sources subject to a NSPS, 

regardless of their industrial category.  These general NSPS standards are found at 40 C.F.R.  

§§ 60.1 - 60.19 (“NSPS Subpart A”). 

28. NSPS Subpart A includes requirements for “continuous monitoring systems” – 

equipment used to sample, analyze, and record emissions or operating parameters – required by 

other specific subparts of the NSPS.  See 40 C.F.R. § 60.13; see also 40 C.F.R. § 60.2 (defining 

“continuous monitoring system”).  CEMS are a type of continuous monitoring systems. 

29. CEMS must be in “continuous operation” except for certain periods of time, such 

as system breakdowns, repairs, calibration checks, and zero and span adjustments.  See 40 C.F.R. 

§ 60.13(e). 

3. Part 60, Subpart J: NSPS Standards for Petroleum Refineries 
 

30. Pursuant to Clean Air Act Section 111(b)(1)(B), 42 U.S.C. § 7411(b)(1)(B), the 

EPA promulgated regulations that apply to certain affected facilities at petroleum refineries, like 

the Toledo Refinery, which commenced construction, reconstruction, or modification after June 

11, 1973.  These NSPS standards are found at 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.100 et seq. (“NSPS Subpart J”). 
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31. The affected facilities that NSPS Subpart J applies to include: “fluid catalytic 

cracking unit catalyst regenerators,” “fuel gas combustion devices,” such as certain heaters and 

boilers, and “Claus sulfur recovery plants” with a capacity greater than twenty (20) long tons per 

day.  See 40 C.F.R. § 60.100(a) and (b); see also 40 C.F.R. § 60.101 (definitions).   

32. NSPS Subpart J requires that: 

a. Fluid catalytic cracking unit catalyst regenerators subject to 40 C.F.R.  
§ 60.103(a) must use a CEMS to record the concentration of carbon 
monoxide (CO) and sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions into the atmosphere.  
See 40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a)(2) (for CO) and (9)-(10) (for SO2). 
 

b. Claus sulfur recovery plants subject to NSPS Subpart J must use a CEMS 
to record the concentration of SO2 emissions into the atmosphere.  See 40 
C.F.R. § 60.105(a)(1) and (5). 

 
c. Fuel gas combustion devices subject to 40 C.F.R. § 60.104(a)(1) must use 

a CEMS to record either the concentration of SO2 emissions into the 
atmosphere or the concentration of hydrogen sulfide (H2S) in fuel gases 
that will be burned in an affected fuel gas combustion device.  See 40 
C.F.R. § 60.105(a)(3)-(4). 

 
33. CEMS required by NSPS Subpart J must comply with 40 C.F.R. § 60.13(e).  See 

40 C.F.R. § 60.13(a). 

4. Part 60, Subparts VV and GGG - NSPS LDAR Standards   

34. LDAR requirements focus on ensuring that covered sources maintain an accurate 

inventory of equipment that may leak (and therefore emit) VOCs and HAPs, regularly monitor 

that equipment to identify leaks, and timely and effectively repair equipment leaks. 

35. The affected facilities under NSPS Subpart GGG include compressors and 

“equipment” in petroleum refinery “process units” that were constructed, reconstructed, or 

modified between January 4, 1983 and November 7, 2006.  See 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.590(a)-(b).  A 
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process unit includes components assembled to produce intermediate or final products from 

petroleum, unfinished petroleum derivatives, or other intermediates.  40 C.F.R. §§ 60.590(e) and 

60.591.   

36. The “equipment” regulated by NSPS Subpart GGG includes each valve, pump, 

pressure relief device, sampling connection system, open-ended valve or line, and flange or other 

connector “in VOC service” at the affected petroleum refinery.  40 C.F.R. § 60.591. 

37. Each owner or operator of a petroleum refinery that is subject to the requirements 

of NSPS Subpart GGG must, in turn, comply with the enumerated standards of NSPS Subpart 

VV (40 C.F.R. § 60.482-1 – 60.482-10).  See 40 C.F.R. § 60.592(a).  In particular, NSPS Subpart 

VV sets forth LDAR requirements for three categories of equipment that are all present at the 

Toledo Refinery: (a) pumps in light liquid service (40 C.F.R. § 60.482-2); (b) open-ended valves 

and lines (40 C.F.R. § 60.482-6); and (c) valves in gas/vapor service and in light liquid service 

(40 C.F.R. § 60.482-7). 

38. NSPS Subpart VV requires that a listing of identification numbers for all 

equipment that is subject to NSPS Subpart VV at an affected petroleum refinery must be 

recorded and logged.  See 40 C.F.R. § 60.486(e)(1).   

39. NSPS Subpart VV requires that the owner or operator undertake periodic 

monitoring for each valve and pump subject to NSPS Subpart VV in order to detect VOC leaks.  

See 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.482-7(a) and (c) (valves) and 60.482-2(a) (pumps). 

40. NSPS Subpart VV requires that equipment monitoring must be performed in 

accordance with “Method 21” at 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix A.  See 40 C.F.R. § 60.485(b)(1).   
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41. Method 21 includes performance and calibration criteria for the instruments used 

to monitor for equipment leaks.  Method 21’s requirements and procedures are intended to 

ensure that leak monitoring equipment is properly assembled, calibrated, and used to accurately 

detect the compounds they must measure.  See 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Appendix A, Sections 2, 6, 8, 

and 10. 

42. Improperly conducted Method 21 monitoring may fail to accurately detect leaks 

of HAPs from equipment that is subject to 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV.  Improperly 

conducted Method 21 monitoring may also fail to determine whether or not leaks of HAPs have 

been properly repaired. 

43. With certain exceptions not relevant here, NSPS Subpart VV requires each 

open-ended valve or line (“OEL”) to be equipped with a cap, blind flange, plug, or second valve.  

See 40 C.F.R. § 60.482-6(a)(1). 

5. Part 60, Subpart QQQ – Controlling VOC Emissions from   
  Refinery Wastewater Systems 
 

44. NSPS Subpart QQQ applies to certain equipment used in petroleum refinery 

wastewater systems that was constructed, reconstructed, or modified after May 4, 1987.  See 40 

C.F.R. § 60.690(a).  These types of equipment – “individual drain systems,” “oil-water 

separators,” and “aggregate facilities” – are the “affected facilities” under NSPS Subpart QQQ.  

See id.; see also 40 C.F.R. § 60.691 (defining individual drain system, oil-water separator, and 

aggregate facility). 

45. Each owner or operator of a petroleum refinery that is subject to the requirements 

of NSPS Subpart QQQ, like the Toledo Refinery, is required to comply with the standards of 40 
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C.F.R. §§ 60.692-1 to 60.692-5, using the methods and procedures specified in 40 C.F.R.  

§ 60.696, to keep records as specified in 40 C.F.R. § 60.697, and to submit reports as specified in 

40 C.F.R. § 60.698. 

ii.  SIPs 
  
46. Clean Air Act Section 110, 42 U.S.C. § 7410, requires each state to adopt and 

submit to EPA for approval a SIP that provides for how the state, like Ohio, will meet certain 

Clean Air Act requirements.  SIPs may also contain some unique, yet federally enforceable, air 

quality requirements. 

47. A SIP is enforceable by the state in which it is adopted. After a SIP is approved 

by the EPA, it is also federally enforceable pursuant to Clean Air Act Section 113(b), 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7413(b). 

48. Pursuant to Clean Air Act Section 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), and 40 C.F.R.  

§ 52.23, the EPA may enforce violations of Ohio’s federally approved SIP requirements, as well 

as violations of permits issued pursuant to those programs.   

iii. Clean Air Act “Title V” Permits 

49. Title V of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661–7661f, (“Title V”) establishes an 

operating permit program for certain stationary sources of air pollution.  See 42 U.S.C. 

§ 7661a(a).  “Major” stationary sources subject to Clean Air Act Section 111’s NSPS are subject 

to Title V permitting requirements.  See 42 U.S.C. § 7661(2)(a), 40 C.F.R. § 70.2 (defining a 

Title V “major source”).  Title V’s purpose is to ensure that all “applicable requirements” 

governing a facility’s compliance with the Clean Air Act, including SIP requirements, are 

collected in one permit – a “Title V operating permit.”  See 42 U.S.C. § 7661c(a). 
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50. States may receive approval from the EPA to administer the Title V permitting 

program in that state.  Pursuant to Section 502(b) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(b), 

EPA promulgated regulations implementing the requirements of Title V.  See 57 Fed. Reg. 

32250 (July 21, 1992).  These regulations, which are codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 70, also establish 

the minimum elements of a Title V operating permit program that a state agency, like the Ohio 

EPA, must meet if they request authorization to administer their state’s Title V permitting 

program.  See id. 

51. EPA fully approved Ohio’s Title V permit program, which became effective on 

October 1, 1995.  See 60 Fed. Reg. 42045 (August 15, 1995).  Ohio is therefore authorized to 

issue and enforce Title V permits.  Ohio’s Title V permit program requirements are codified at 

OAC Chapter 3745-77.  In all respects relevant to this Complaint, Ohio’s Title V requirements 

closely mirror the federal Title V regulations codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 70.  

52. Title V permits are federally enforceable by EPA.  42 U.S.C. § 7413(b); 40 C.F.R. 

§ 70.6(b). 

53. Section 502(a) of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a)) and the Title V permit 

program and regulations of Ohio provide that, after the effective date of the state Title V permit 

program, no stationary source subject to Title V may operate except in compliance with a Title V 

permit.  See 42 U.S.C. § 7661a(a); 40 C.F.R. §§ 70.1(b) and 70.7(b).  It is unlawful to violate any 

requirement of a Title V permit.  See id. 

54. Section 504(a) of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7661c(a)), 40 C.F.R. § 70.6(a) 

and (c), and Ohio’s Title V regulations require that each Title V permit include, inter alia, 

enforceable emission limitations and standards, a schedule of compliance, and such other 
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conditions as are necessary to assure compliance with all applicable requirements of the Clean 

Air Act, including the requirements of the applicable SIP.   

55. At all times relevant herein, the Toledo Refinery has been subject to the Title V 

permitting requirements contained in 40 C.F.R. Part 70 and the Ohio SIP. 

56. Since approximately August of 2004, and at all times relevant to this Complaint, 

the Toledo Refinery has been subject to a federally enforceable Title V permit that has been 

issued pursuant to the Ohio SIP, including O.A.C. 3745-77. 

B. CERCLA and EPCRA Release Reporting Requirements 

57. Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and Section 304 of EPCRA, 

42 U.S.C. § 11004, require that notice must be provided of releases of certain hazardous or 

extremely hazardous substances.  These requirements provide a mechanism to alert federal, state, 

and local agencies that may be called upon to respond to the release or underlying cause of the 

release.  These notification requirements help prevent harm to emergency responders, facility 

personnel, and the local community.  A delay or failure to notify could hamper the governments’ 

response to an emergency and pose serious threats to human health and the environment. 

i. CERCLA Section 103(a) – Notice to the National Response Center 

58. Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), requires that any person in 

charge of an onshore facility report the non-permitted release of a hazardous substance from the 

facility to the National Response Center as soon as that person has knowledge of such a release 

that occurs in any 24-hour period in an amount equal to or greater than the reportable quantity 

under Section 102 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9602, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 302.4 and 302.6. 
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59. Pursuant to CERCLA Sections 102 and 103, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9602 and 9603, EPA 

promulgated federal regulations, known as the “CERCLA Notification Rules,” published at 

40 C.F.R. Part 302.  These CERCLA Notification Rules designate hazardous substances, identify 

reportable quantities for these substances, and set forth notification requirements for these 

substances. 

60. Asbestos, benzene, hydrogen sulfide, naphthalene, and sulfuric acid are each a 

“hazardous substance” as that term is defined under Section 101(14) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 9601(14), and 40 C.F.R. §§ 302.3-302.4. 

61. Each of the following hazardous substances has the following reportable quantity 

(“RQ”) as indicated at 40 C.F.R. Part 302, Table 302.4: asbestos RQ is 1 lb.; benzene RQ is 10 

lbs.; hydrogen sulfide RQ is 100 lbs.; naphthalene RQ is 100 lbs.; and sulfuric acid RQ is 1,000 

lbs. 

62. The regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 302.6 require, among other things, that any person 

in charge of an onshore facility must immediately notify the National Response Center as soon 

as that person has knowledge of any non-permitted release of a hazardous substance from such 

facility in quantities equal to or greater than the applicable reportable quantity. 

ii. EPCRA Section 304 – Notice to SERCs and LEPCs 

63. The purpose of EPCRA is to provide communities with information on nearby 

potential chemical hazards and to facilitate state and local emergency planning efforts to control 

any accidental releases.  See 51 Fed. Reg. 41,570 (Nov. 17, 1986). 

64. To achieve this goal, EPCRA mandates notification requirements on industrial 

and commercial facilities and mandates that state emergency response commissions (“SERCs”) 
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and local emergency planning committees (“LEPCs”) be created.  EPCRA establishes a 

framework of state, regional, and local agencies designed to inform the public about the presence 

of hazardous chemicals, and to provide for emergency response in the event of a release. 

65. Pursuant to Section 302(a) of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11002(a), the EPA published a 

list of extremely hazardous substances which, when released into the environment, may present a 

substantial danger to public health or welfare or the environment.  EPA also promulgated 

regulations establishing the threshold RQ for these extremely hazardous substances that trigger 

the reporting requirements of Sections 304(b) and 304(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11004(b) and 

(c).  The list of RQs for EPCRA extremely hazardous substances is codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 

355, Appendix A.  

66. Hydrogen sulfide, sulfur dioxide, and sulfuric acid are each an “extremely 

hazardous substance” as that term is defined under 42 US.C. § 11002(a) and 40 C.F.R. Part 355, 

Appendix A. 

67. Each of the following hazardous substances has the following reportable quantity 

(“RQ”) as indicated at 40 C.F.R. Part 355, Appendix A: hydrogen sulfide RQ is 100 lbs.; sulfur 

dioxide RQ is 500 lbs.; and sulfuric acid RQ is 1,000 lbs. 

68. Sections 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11004(a) and (b), and the 

regulations found at 40 C.F.R. § 355.40, require owners and operators of EPCRA-regulated 

facilities to immediately notify the SERC and LEPC in any areas likely to be affected by a 

release of an extremely hazardous substance or CERCLA hazardous substance in a quantity 

equal to or greater than the RQ.   

69. Section 304(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 11004(b), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40 specify 

Case: 3:20-cv-00190-JGC  Doc #: 1  Filed:  01/29/20  16 of 34.  PageID #: 16



 

17 
 

the information that must be included in any notice required pursuant to EPCRA Section 304(a), 

42 U.S.C. 11004(a).  

C. Enforcement Provisions 

i. Clean Air Act 

70. Clean Air Act Sections 113(a)(1)(C) and (a)(3)(C), 42 U.S.C. §§ 7413(a)(1)(C) 

and (a)(3)(C), authorize the EPA to bring a civil enforcement action under Clean Air Act Section 

113(b) for the violations alleged in this Complaint.  Civil enforcement actions may be based on 

“any information available” to the EPA that indicates that any person has violated or is in 

violation of, inter alia, Clean Air Act Section 111, a NSPS regulation, the Title V permit 

program, Ohio’s SIP, or the terms of the Toledo Refinery’s Title V permit.  See 42 U.S.C. 

§§ 7413(a)(1)(C) and (a)(3)(C); 40 C.F.R. § 52.23. 

71. A civil action commenced under Clean Air Act Section 113(b), 42 U.S.C.  

§ 7413(b), may seek permanent or temporary injunctive relief.  See 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b).  The 

Court is also authorized to affirmatively “require compliance” and “award any other appropriate 

relief.”  See id. 

72. A civil action commenced under Clean Air Act Section 113(b), 42 U.S.C.  

§ 7413(b), may also seek civil penalties of up to $32,500 per day for each violation occurring 

between March 15, 2004 and January 12, 2009; up to $37,500 per day for each violation that 

occurs between January 13, 2009 and November 2, 2015; and up to $99,681 per day for each 

violation that occurs after November 2, 2015 and that is assessed on or after February 6, 2019.  

See 40 C.F.R. § 19.4 (listing annual inflation adjustments to maximum civil penalties). 
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ii. CERCLA 

73. A civil action commenced under CERCLA Section 109(c), 42 U.S.C.  

§ 9609(c), may seek civil penalties, for each day during which an initial violation (or failure or 

refusal) of CERCLA Section 103(a)’s notice requirement continues, of up to $32,500 per day for 

each violation occurring between March 15, 2004 and January 12, 2009; up to $37,500 per day 

for each violation that occurs between January 13, 2009 and December 6, 2013.  See 40 C.F.R.  

§ 19.4. 

74. For each day during which a second or subsequent violation of CERCLA 

Section 103(a)’s notice requirements continues, a civil penalty may be assessed under CERCLA 

Section 109(c) of up to $97,500 per day for each violation occurring between March 15, 2004 

and January 12, 2009; and up to $107,500 per day for each violation that occurs between January 

13, 2009 and December 6, 2013.  See 40 C.F.R. § 19.4. 

iii. EPCRA 

75. A civil action commenced under Section 325(b)(3) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. 

§ 11045(b)(3), may seek civil penalties from any person who violates EPCRA Section 304, 42 

U.S.C. § 11004.  The United States may seek civil penalties of up to $32,500 per day for each 

day the violation continues for violations occurring between March 15, 2004 and January 12, 

2009, and up to $97,500 per day for each day that any second or subsequent violation continues.  

See 40 C.F.R. § 19.4.  For violations occurring between January 13, 2009 and December 6, 2013, 

civil penalties are authorized of up to $37,500 per day for each day the violation continues, and 

up to $107,500 per day for each day that any second or subsequent violation continues.  See id. 
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

A. Clean Air Act 

76. At all times relevant to the Complaint, the Toledo Refinery has been a “major 

stationary source” within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. §§ 7602(j), 7661(2), and 40 C.F.R. § 70.2.  

The Toledo Refinery emits or has had the potential to emit at least 100 tons per year of nitrogen 

oxides (NOx), SO2, CO, particulate matter (PM) (including PM10 and PM2.5), and/or VOCs. 

77. At all times relevant to the Complaint, the Toledo Refinery has been a “petroleum 

refinery” within the meaning of 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.1, 60.2, 60.100(a), 60.101(a), 60.590(a), and 

60.690(a). 

78. At all times relevant to the Complaint, the Toledo Refinery has been an “affected 

facility,” and has contained individual “affected facilities,” that are subject to regulation pursuant 

to 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subparts A and J.  These affected facilities include: 

a. The CO Boiler for fluid catalytic cracking unit 2 (“FCC 2”) (Emissions 
Unit P007); 
 

b. Sulfur Recovery Units #2 and 3 (Emissions Unit P037); and 

c. The following fuel gas combustion devices: process heaters and boilers 
B001 (hydrogen furnace), B005 (Reformer 2 Regenerator Furnace), B006 
(Reformer 2 Furnace), B008 (Iso 2 Feed Heater), B009 (Iso 2 Stabilizer 
Reboiler), B010 (Iso 2 Splitter Reboiler), B013 (Reformer 1 Regenerator 
Furnace), B014 (Reformer 1 Furnace), B015 (Crude 1 Furnace), B017 
(Coker II Heater), B018 (FCC Preheater), B019 (Crude/Vac 2 Furnace), 
B022 (Naphtha Treater Heater), B024 (Asphalt Heater), B029 (A-Train 
Diesel Hydrotreater (“ADHT”) Furnace), B030 (B-Train Gas Oil 
Hydrotreater (“BGOT”) Furnace), B031 (Vac 1 Furnace), B032 Coker 3 
Furnace), B033 and B034. 

 
79. At all times relevant to the Complaint, the following eight CEMS were used to 

monitor the affected facilities listed in the preceding paragraph: H031, H030, H33, and H041 
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(for H2S), S119, S201, and S283 (for SO2), and C089 (for CO).  Each of these CEMS were 

subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Subparts A and J, including 40 C.F.R. § 60.13(e). 

80. At all times relevant to the Complaint, the Toledo Refinery has contained 

“process units” and thousands of pieces of “equipment” that are “affected facilities” within the 

meaning of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subparts VV and Subpart GGG.  See 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.590(a)(1) 

and (3) and 60.591.  These process units include, but are not limited to, FCC2, the ADHT, 

BGOT, Coker 2, alkylation units (Alky 1, Alky 2, and Alky 3), crude vacuum distillation units, 

Deisobutanizer Tower, isocracker, catalytic reformers (Reformers 1, 2, and 3), Sulfur Recovery 

Unit (SRU #1), amine unit, butane vapor recovery unit, saturated and unsaturated gas plants, and 

tank farms (the “East” and “West” Tanks Farms). 

81. At all times relevant to this Complaint, these process units listed in the preceding 

paragraph have contained the following types of equipment, which constitute an affected facility 

within the meaning of NSPS Subpart GGG and VV: valves, pumps, pressure relief devices, 

sampling connection systems, open-ended valves or lines, and flanges or other connectors in 

VOC service.  See 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.590(a)(3) and 60.591 (defining “equipment”). 

82. At all times relevant to this Complaint, there have been at least five process units 

at the Toledo Refinery with individual drain systems that are affected facilities subject to NSPS 

Subpart QQQ: the ADHT, BGOT; TRP Sulfur Recovery Unit; the Isocracker 2; and Coker 3.  

See 40 C.F.R. § 60.690(a).  The Toledo Refinery also has other wastewater system components 

that have been “affected facilities” within the meaning of NSPS Subpart QQQ at all times 

relevant to the Complaint, including an 84-inch process sewer line; other process sewers lines; 

oil-water separators; a stormwater diversion chamber; list stations; inlet and outlet sewer 
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connections to two in-ground stormwater impoundment tanks (T168 and T169); and secondary 

containment dike drain lines serving several aboveground storage tanks (T153, T154, T155, Tl 

56, Tl 57, Tl59, T161, Tl 63, T164, T166 and T167).  See id.; see also 40 C.F.R. § 60.691 

(defining “aggregate facility,” “individual drain system,” and “oil-water separator,” “sewer line,” 

and “wastewater system”).  The units and wastewater system components referenced in this 

paragraph were constructed, reconstructed, or modified after May 4, 1987, within the meaning of 

40 C.F.R. §§ 60.2, 60.690-91. 

B. CERCLA and EPCRA 

83. The Toledo Refinery is a “facility” as that term is defined under Section 101(9) of 

CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(9).  The Toledo Refinery is a “facility” as that term is defined under 

Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4). 

84. The Toledo Refinery is an “onshore facility,” within the meaning of 

Sections 101(9), 101(18) and 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601(9), 9601(18), and 9603(a), 

and 40 C.F.R. § 302.3. 

85. Sulfur dioxide, benzene, hydrogen sulfide, naphthalene, and sulfuric acid are each 

a “hazardous chemical” within the meaning of Section 311(e) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11021(e), 

and 29 C.F.R. § 1910.1200(c).  At all times relevant to this Complaint, each of these hazardous 

chemicals was produced, used and/or stored at the Toledo Refinery.   
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FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Continuously Operate CEMS 
 

(Violations of NSPS Subparts A and J; Title V Requirements) 
 

86. Paragraphs 1-33, 46-56, 70-72, and 76-79 are re-alleged and incorporated herein 

by reference. 

87. On numerous occasions between 2006 and 2011, the Defendants failed to 

continuously operate CEMS at the Toledo Refinery as follows: 

a. Between the third calendar quarter of 2007 and the second calendar 
quarter of 2008, CEMS H031 failed to continuously monitor and record 
the concentration of H2S in the fuel gas burned in Emissions Units B001, 
B005, B008, B009, B010, B024, and B029, as required by 40 C.F.R.  
§ 60.105(a);  

b. Between the fourth calendar quarter of 2007 and the fourth calendar 
quarter of 2009, CEMS H030 failed to continuously monitor and record 
the concentration of H2S in the fuel gas burned in Emissions Units B013, 
B014, B015, B017, B018, B019, B022, B030, B031, B033, and P007, as 
required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a);  

c. Between the first calendar quarter of 2007 and the second calendar quarter 
of 2011, CEMS H033 failed to continuously monitor and record the 
concentration of H2S in the fuel gas burned in Emissions Units B032 and 
B034, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a);  

d. During the fourth calendar quarter of 2007, CEMS H041 failed to 
continuously monitor and record the concentration of H2S in the fuel gas 
burned in Emissions Unit B004, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a);  

e. Between the second calendar quarter of 2007 and the fourth calendar 
quarter of 2009, CEMS S119 failed to continuously monitor and record 
the concentration of SO2 emissions from Emissions Unit P007, as required 
by 40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a);  

f. During the fourth calendar quarter of 2009, CEMS S283 failed to 
continuously monitor and record the concentration of SO2 emissions from 
Emissions Unit P007, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a);  
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g. Between the second and fourth calendar quarters of 2007, CEMS C089 
failed to continuously monitor and record the concentration of CO 
emissions from Emissions Unit P007, as required by 40 C.F.R.  
§ 60.105(a);  

h. Between the first calendar quarter of 2006 and the first calendar quarter of 
2011, CEMS S201 failed to continuously monitor and record the 
concentration of SO2 emissions from Emissions Unit P037, as required by 
40 C.F.R. § 60.105(a).  

88. The acts and/or omissions alleged in this Claim for Relief constitute violations of: 

a. Section 111(e) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e); 

b. 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.13(e) and 60.105(a); 

c. The federally enforceable corollary provisions of the Ohio SIP that adopt, 
incorporate, and/or implement any of the federal provisions cited in sub-
paragraphs 88(a)–(b); 

d. The terms of the Toledo Refinery’s Title V Permit that require compliance 
with the requirements identified in sub-paragraphs 88(a)–(c); and 

e. The prohibitions against violating a Title V permit found at 42 U.S.C. 
§ 7661a(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b). 

89. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

90. As provided in Clean Air Act Sections 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations 

set forth above subject the Defendants to injunctive relief and civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. 

§ 19.4. 
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Properly Identify Equipment Subject to LDAR Requirements 
 

(Violations of NSPS Part 60, Subparts VV and GGG; Title V Requirements) 
 

91. Paragraphs 1-26, 34-43, 46-56, 70-72, 76-77, and 80-81 are re-alleged and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

92. Between approximately 2008 and 2016, the Defendants failed to identify and 

record the identification numbers, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.486(e)(1), of all valves at the 

Toledo Refinery that were subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart GGG, and, 

in turn, 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV.  The Defendants failed to identify and record the 

identification numbers of: 9 valves in 2008, 25 valves in 2010, 13 valves in 2012, and 26 valves 

in 2016. 

93. These “missed” valves were in VOC service in process units at the Toledo 

Refinery that were constructed, reconstructed, or modified between January 4, 1983 and 

November 7, 2006.  These units include, but are not limited to, the Alky 1 and 2, “Blender,” 

“Benzene-Stripper,” Isocracker 2, Reformer 2, Crude Unit 1, and Crude Vac Unit 2.  The missed 

valves were, therefore, “equipment” and an “affected facility” subject to the requirements of 40 

C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart GGG, and, in turn, 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV, 40 C.F.R. 

§ 60.486(e)(1). 

94. The acts and/or omissions alleged in this Claim for Relief constitute violations of: 

a. Section 111(e) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e); 

b. 40 C.F.R. § 60.486(e)(1); 

c. The terms of the Toledo Refinery’s Title V Permit that require compliance 
with the requirements identified in sub-paragraphs 94(a)–(b); and 
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d. The prohibitions against violating a Title V permit found at 42 U.S.C. 
§ 7661a(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b). 

95. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

96. As provided in Clean Air Act Sections 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations 

set forth above subject the Defendants to injunctive relief and civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. 

§ 19.4. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Properly Monitor for Leaking Equipment 
 

(Violations of NSPS Part 60, Subparts VV and GGG; Title V Requirements) 
 

97. Paragraphs 1-26, 34-43, 46-56, 70-72, 76-77, and 80-81 are re-alleged and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

98. Between approximately 2006 and 2016, the Defendants failed to monitor all 

equipment at the Toledo Refinery that was subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, 

Subpart GGG, and, in turn, 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV, in accordance with Method 21 as 

required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.485(b)(1).  The Defendants failed to properly monitor: more than 

1,000 valves between 2006 and 2016, approximately 800 components in 2006, and at least one 

pump in both 2008 and 2012.  “Comparative monitoring” analysis performed in 2007 also 

showed that the Defendants had failed to monitor equipment at the LPG Units and Reformer 2 at 

the Toledo Refinery in accordance with Method 21.   

99. The acts and/or omissions alleged in this Claim for Relief constitute violations of: 

a. Section 111(e) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e); 

b. 40 C.F.R. § 60.485(b)(1); 
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c. The terms of the Toledo Refinery’s Title V Permit that require compliance 
with the requirements identified in sub-paragraphs 99(a)–(b); and 

d. The prohibitions against violating a Title V permit found at 42 U.S.C. 
§ 7661a(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b). 

100. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

101. As provided in Clean Air Act Sections 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations 

set forth above subject the Defendants to injunctive relief and civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. 

§ 19.4. 

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Properly Equip Open-Ended Lines 
 

(Violations of NSPS Part 60, Subparts VV and GGG; Title V Requirements) 
 

102. Paragraphs 1-26, 34-43, 46-56, 70-72, 76-77, and 80-81 are re-alleged and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

103. Between approximately 2006 and 2016, the Defendants failed to equip all OELs 

at the Toledo Refinery that were subject to the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart GGG, 

and, in turn, 40 C.F.R. Part 60, Subpart VV, with a cap, blind flange, plug, or second valve, as 

required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.482-6(a)(1).  The Defendants failed to properly equip: 14 OELs in 

2006, 2 OELs in both 2010 and 2012, and 6 OELs in 2016. 

104. The acts and/or omissions alleged in this Claim for Relief constitute violations of: 

a. Section 111(e) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e); 

b. 40 C.F.R. § 60.482-6(a)(1); 

c. The terms of the Toledo Refinery’s Title V Permit that require compliance 
with the requirements identified in sub-paragraphs 104(a)–(b); and 
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d. The prohibitions against violating a Title V permit found at 42 U.S.C. 
§ 7661a(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b). 

105. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

106. As provided in Clean Air Act Sections 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations 

set forth above subject the Defendants to injunctive relief and civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. 

§ 19.4. 

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Properly Inspect, Monitor, and Control Refinery Wastewater Components 
 

(Violations of NSPS Subpart QQQ and Title V Requirements) 
 

107. Paragraphs 1-18, 44-56, 70-72, 76-77, and 82 are re-alleged and incorporated 

herein by reference. 

108. Between approximately 2008 and January 2013, the Defendants failed to properly 

inspect all drain hubs, drain valves, cleanouts, vent pipes, manholes, and lift stations subject to 

NSPS Subpart QQQ at the Toledo Refinery, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.692-2(a)(2), 40 C.F.R. 

§ 60.692-2(a)(3), and 40 C.F.R. § 60.692-2(b)(3). 

109. Between approximately 2008 and January 2013, the Defendants failed to cover all 

cleanouts and manholes subject to NSPS Subpart QQQ at the Toledo Refinery with a tight seal, 

as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.692-2(b)(2). 

110. Between approximately 2008 and January 2013, the Defendants failed to keep the 

diameter of two vent pipes subject to NSPS Subpart QQQ at the Toledo Refinery under 4 inches, 

as required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.692-2(b)(1). 
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111. Between approximately 2008 and January 2013, the Defendants failed to inspect 

at least 46 drain hubs, seven drain valves, 186 cleanouts, 48 vent pipes, 62 manholes, eight catch 

basins and a lift station subject to NSPS Subpart QQQ at the Toledo Refinery for indications of 

potential emissions, defects, or other problems before using the equipment, as required by 40 

C.F.R. § 60.696(a). 

112. Between approximately 2008 and January 2013, the Defendants failed to 

summarize in semi-annual reports to the EPA all inspections when a water seal was found to be 

dry or otherwise breached, as well as information about the repairs or corrective action taken, as 

required by 40 C.F.R. § 60.698(c). 

113. The acts and/or omissions alleged in this Claim for Relief constitute violations of: 

a. Section 111(e) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7411(e); 
 

b. 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.692-2(a)(2)-(3), 60.692-2(b)(1)-(3), 60.696(a), 
and 60.698(c); 

 
c. The terms of the Toledo Refinery’s Title V Permit that require compliance 

with the requirements identified in sub-paragraphs 113(a)–(b); and 

d. The prohibitions against violating a Title V permit found at 42 U.S.C. 
§ 7661a(a) and 40 C.F.R. § 70.7(b). 

 
114. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

115. As provided in Clean Air Act Sections 113(b), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations 

set forth above subject the Defendants to injunctive relief and civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. 

§ 19.4. 
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SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Immediately Notify to National Response Center 
 

(Violations of CERCLA Section 103(a)) 

116. Paragraphs 1-26, 57-69, 73-75, and 83-85 are re-alleged and incorporated herein 

by reference.  

117. On the following dates, the following releases of hazardous substances occurred 

from the Toledo Refinery: 

a. June 21, 2009, 6.9 lbs of asbestos; 

b. September 23, 2010, 18 lbs of benzene; 

c. October 6, 2010, 200 lbs of H2S; 

d. April 6, 2011, 403 lbs of naphthalene; 

e. July 9, 2011, 316 lbs of H2S; and 

f. March 24, 2012, 10,226 lbs of sulfuric acid 

118. Each of these releases is a “release” as that term is defined under Section 101(22) 

of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(22), and 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601(22) and 

9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.3.   

119. Each of these releases equaled or exceeded the “reportable quantity,” within the 

meaning of Sections 102 and 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9602 and 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. 

§ 302.3, for the respective hazardous substances. 

120. The Defendants each had actual or constructive “knowledge,” within the meaning 

of Section 103(a) CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), of these releases at or shortly after the time of 

the releases. 
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121. The Defendants each failed to “immediately notify” the National Response Center 

as soon as they had knowledge of these releases, as required by Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 

U.S.C. § 9603(a). 

122. Each time the Defendants failed to immediately notify the National Response 

Center of these releases at the Toledo Refinery, they violated Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 

U.S.C. § 9603(a). 

123. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

124. As provided in CERCLA Section 109(c), 42 U.S.C. § 9609(c), the violations set 

forth above subject the Defendants to civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. § 19.4. 

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 
 

Failure to Immediately Notify the Local Emergency Planning Committee and State 
Emergency Response Committee 

 
(Violations of EPCRA Section 304) 

 
125. Paragraphs 1-26, 57-69, 73-75, and 83-85 are re-alleged and incorporated herein 

by reference.  

126. On the following dates, the following releases of hazardous or extremely 

hazardous substances occurred from the Toledo Refinery : 

a. March 15, 2010, 700 lbs of SO2; 

b. September 23, 2010, 18 lbs of benzene; 

c.  October 6, 2010, 200 lbs of H2S and 3,100 lbs of SO2; 

d. December 13, 2010, 774 lbs of SO2; 
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e. June 3, 2011, 1,094 lbs of SO2; 

f. July 9, 2011, 316 lbs of H2S; 

g. February 14, 2012, 896 lbs of SO2; and 

h. March 24, 2012, 10,226 lbs of sulfuric acid. 

127. Each of these releases is a “release” as that term is defined under Section 329(8) 

of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(8). 

128. Each of these releases equaled or exceeded the “reportable quantity,” within the 

meaning of Section 304 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004, and 40 C.F.R. Part 355, Appendix A, for 

the respective hazardous or extremely hazardous substances. 

129. Subject to a reasonable opportunity for investigation and discovery, Lucas 

County, Ohio was “likely to be affected” by these releases, within the meaning of Section 304 of 

EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004.  

130. After these releases from the Toledo Refinery, the Defendants each failed to 

provide immediate notice of each release to the SERC for Ohio and community emergency 

coordinator for the LEPC for Lucas County, Ohio, and failed to immediately notify local 

emergency response personnel by calling the 911 emergency phone number. 

131. The Defendants violated Section 304(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(b), when 

they failed to immediately notify the SERC and LEPC of each release.  

132. Unless restrained by an order of the Court, the violations alleged in this Claim for 

Relief will continue. 

133. As provided in EPCRA Section 325(b)(3), 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(3), the violations 

set forth above subject the Defendants to civil penalties.  See also 40 C.F.R. § 19.4. 
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, the United States and Ohio respectfully request that this Court: 

A. Enter judgment in favor of the Plaintiffs and against the Defendants, BP Products 

and BP-Husky; 

B. Order the Defendants to take all actions necessary to operate the Toledo Refinery 

in compliance with the requirements of the Clean Air Act, EPCRA, and CERCLA that this 

Complaint alleges the Defendants violated, including the applicable requirements of the Ohio 

SIP; 

C. Permanently enjoin the Defendants from operating the Toledo Refinery except in 

accordance with the Clean Air Act, EPCRA, and CERCLA and applicable regulatory 

requirements, including the Ohio SIP; 

D. Order the Defendants to take other appropriate actions to remedy, mitigate, and 

offset the harm caused by their alleged violations of the Clean Air Act, EPCRA, and CERCLA 

by, among other things, requiring the Defendants to address or offset their unlawful emissions; 

E. Assess a civil penalty against each Defendant for each day of each of their 

respective violations of the Clean Air Act, CERCLA, and EPCRA, as enumerated in this 

Complaint; 

F. Assess a civil penalty against each Defendant for their respective violations of the 

Ohio SIP, and thus, violations of Ohio Rev. Code § 3704.05, in an amount not to exceed $25,000 

for each day of each violation under Ohio Rev. Code § 3704.06; 

G. Award the Plaintiffs their costs of this action; and 

H. Award the Plaintiffs any other relief the Court deems just and proper. 
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